
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

JANUARY 8, 2015  



 
 

 
Mayor Council Members  
Donald McMannes Allan Steagall 
City Manager Ray Calfee 
Darrell Boeske Merle Aaron 
City Secretary Andy Curry 
Jason Stuebe Norman Funderburk  
     

 
Agenda 

Humble City Council 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, January 8, 2015 6:30 P.M. 
City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 

Humble, Texas 
 

Call to order. 
 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Presentation of awards to Christmas Parade and Christmas Lighting Contest winners. 
 

3. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 
by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 
of the Council. 

 
a. Minutes – Regular Meeting December 11, 2014 
b. Financial Statement  
c. Current Invoices 
d. Monthly Department Reports 
e. Correspondence. 

 
4. Ordinance No. 15-749 amending City of Humble Ordinance 14-742, Passed and 

Approved the 25th day of September 2014 and being an ordinance adopting the City of 
Humble Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015, by adding to the budget adopted hereby an 
Addendum No. 1; Providing for a certain amendment to such Budget; making certain 
findings; and providing other matters related to the subject. 

 
5. Adjournment 

 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 
will be held on Thursday, January 8, 2015 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 114 
West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See Agenda. 
 
Posted this 5h day of January, 2015 at 5:00 P.M. 



 
 
 
      
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 
the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 
correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 
and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 
to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on January 5, 2015 at 
5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled 
time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 
following date and time:       by                   
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2015. 
 
 
      
Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS FACILITY IS WHEELCHAIR ACCESSIBLE AND ACCESSIBLE PARKING SPACES 
ARE AVAILABLE.  REQUESTS FOR ACCOMODATIONS OR INTERPRETIVE SERVICES 
MUST BE MADE 48 HOURS PRIOR TO THIS MEETING.  PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY 

SECRETARY’S OFFICE AT (281) 446-3061 OR FAX (281) 446-7843 FOR FURTHER 
INFORMATION. 

 
 

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

HUMBLE CHRISTMAS PARADE AWARDS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

A – DECEMBER 11, 2014 MINUTES 

B – FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

C – CURRENT INVOICES 

D – MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

E – CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3A 

 

DECEMBER 11, 2014 MINUTES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 12-11-2014 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

DECEMBER 11, 2014 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Donnie McMannes, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Merle Aaron 
    Council Member Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
     
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Council Member Andy Curry 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
    Police Chief Gary Warman 
    Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Fire Marshall James Nykaza 
    Firefighter John Gosselin 
    Lt. Delbert Dawes 
 
VISITORS PRESENT:  Juanita Steagall 
    Kathy Funderburk 
          
Mayor Donnie McMannes called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum 
present at 6:30 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Council Member Funderburk offered the invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.  
 
2. CONSENT AGENDA. 

2a.  Minutes – November 13, 2014 Regular Meeting 
2b. Financial Statement 
2c.  Current Invoices 
2d. Monthly Department Reports 
2f.  Correspondence 
 



Minutes 12-11-2014 

Upon a motion made by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted five (5) for and none 
(0) opposed to approve the Consent Agenda.  
 

3. RESOLUTION 14-741 AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ACT ON BEHALF OF THE CITY OF 
HUMBLE, TEXAS TO ENTER INTO A GATEWAY MONUMENT AGREEMENT WITH THE TEXAS 
DEPOARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION. 

 
City Manager Boeske asked for approval of Resolution so that the City may start on construction of a 
new welcome sign.  Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Aaron, the City Council voted five (5) for and 
none (0) opposed to approve the Resolution 14-741. 
 

4. APPROVAL OF BID 15-01 AND CONTRACT FOR THE 2015 CONCRETE PAVEMENT IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT – PACKAGE 1 WITH METRO CITY CONSTRUCTION, L.P. IN THE AMOUNT OF $6,066,590.00 
 
Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed 
to approve the contract with Metro City Construction, L.P. in the amount of $6,066,590.00 for the 
2015 Concrete Pavement Improvements Project. 
 

5. APPROVAL OF PRE-EVENT DISASTER DEBRIS CLEARANCE AND REMOVAL SERVICES CONTRACTS 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF HUMBLE AND DRC EMERGENCY SERVICES, LLC ACTING AS THE PRIMARY 
CONTRACTOR, CERES ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES ACTING AS THE SECONDARY CONTRACTOR, 
AND CORWDERGULF, LLC ACTING AS THE TERTIARY CONTRACTOR.  

 
 City Manager Boeske noted that all three contractors were bid through and approved by HGAC and 

were necessary in the event of a disaster.  Upon a motion by Council Member Funderburk, the City 
Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to approve the primary, secondary and tertiary 
contracts for Disaster Debris Clearance and Removal Services.  

 
6. AUTHORIZATION TO CREATE A “NO PARKING” ZONE AND DEDICATED FIRE LANE ON THE NORTH 

CURB LINE OF EDDY STREET BETWEEN WILSON ROAD TO THE TERMINUS OF EDDY STREET. 
 

Upon a motion by Mayor Pro Tem Aaron, the City Council voted five (5) for and none (0) opposed to 
approve the No Parking Zone. 
 

7. APPROVAL OF THE INSURANCE COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR THE CITY OF HUMBLE’S 
EMPLOYEE GROUP INSURANCE COVERAGE FOR 2015.  
 
City Manager Boeske stated that the City would be staying with Cigna to provide Group Insurance 
Coverage.  Upon a motion by Council Member Steagall, the City Council voted five (5) for and none 
(0) opposed to approve the Committee’s recommendation. 
 

8. APPROVAL OF A FINAL PLAT FOR A5 INVESTMENTS LLC A SUBDIVISION OF 1.4192 ACRES OF LAND 
SITUATED IN THE JOHN BROWN JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 484, CITY OF HUMBLE, HARRIS 
COUNTY, TEXAS BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF LOTS 1 & 2 ECKOLS ESTATE TRACT VOLUME 1A, 
PAGE 88 M.R.H.C. AND BEING A PARTIAL REPLAT OF TRACT 14 E.M. ISAACKS 25 ACRE 
SUBDIVISION VOLUME 1A, PAGE 74 M.R.H.C.; 1 RESERVE, 1 BLOCK.  THE PROPERTY IS LOCATED 
ALONG WILSON RD. NORTH OF FIRST STREET. 

 



Minutes 12-11-2014 

City Secretary Stuebe stated that Mayor Pro Tem Aaron had appropriate filed an Affidavit of Conflict 
of Interest and would not be participating in any discussion or vote related to the matter pursuant 
to State Law.   Upon a motion by Council Member Funderburk, the City Council voted four (4) for 
and none (0) opposed to approve the Final Plat.   
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor McMannes adjourned the Regular 
Meeting of the City Council at 6:36 P.M. on Thursday, December 11, 2014.   

 
 
    
             

       D.G. McMannes 
       Mayor 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month of December 2014

General Fund:

Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
12/31/2014

Cash 252.42$            1,665,315.41$         
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 21,493.25         14,678,562.56         
Cash - METRO 276.58              5,988,136.58           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 9,167.55           10,626,123.38         

Total 31,189.80         32,958,137.93         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    4,152,852.81           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 5,104.56           4,326,855.92           

Total 5,104.56           8,479,708.73           

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 84.14                1,926,603.68           
Brokerage CDs -                    498,535.25              

Total 84.14                2,425,138.93           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    605,298.17              

Total -                    605,298.17              

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 0.43                  4,153.63                  
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction -                    144,473.65              

Total 0.43                  148,627.28              

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    153,211.12              
Brokerage CDs 224.38              119,586.12              

Total 224.38              272,797.24              

Total All Funds:
Cash 613.14              14,491,417.77         
TexStar 0.43                  4,153.63                  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 35,989.74         30,394,136.88         
Total 36,603.31$      44,889,708.28$       



COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Projects TOTAL

12/2/2014 100.00                   100.00$                  

12/5/2014 681,888.75            109,967.96                 714.19                 27.16                 305,781.03           1,098,379.09$        

12/5/2014 2,027.99                692.99                        58,457.10          61,178.08$             

12/11/2014 32,600.00                4,000.00                       36,600.00$               

12/12/2014 200.00                     200.00$                    

12/15/2014 600.00                     600.00$                    

717,416.74$          114,660.95$                   714.19$                  58,484.26$           305,781.03$             1,197,057.17$        





























COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3D 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







































































































































COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3E 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 
 

 

 
December 12, 2014 

Number 44 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Railroad Commission Adopts Gas Rate Rules 
 
Ignoring opposition from legislators and city officials, the Texas Railroad Commission on 
Tuesday adopted rule changes sought by CenterPoint Energy that would make it easier for 
natural gas utilities to raise rates on Texas consumers. 
 
The rules would restrict the ability of cities to challenge proposed natural gas rate increases in 
the interests of their businesses and residents. The new rules will take effect Sept. 1, 2015, unless 
the legislature passes a law to block them. 
 
In the last legislative session, two bills similar to the new rules were considered by the House 
State Affairs Committee chaired by Rep. Byron Cook (R-Corsicana), but the bills never made it 
out of committee.  
 
At the commission’s meeting on Tuesday, Rep. Jim Keffer (R- Eastland), Chair of the House 
Committee on Energy Resources, testified in opposition to the rule changes.  Click here to view a 
video of Chairman Keffer’s testimony.  (Note:  The testimony of a number of city officials 
follows that of Chairman Keffer on the video.)   
 
 

TML E-List Project:  Choose Your Area of Interest 
 
The Texas Municipal League is once again implementing the TML E-List project by gathering 
email addresses from city officials (elected and appointed) who: (1) may be willing to provide 

https://vimeo.com/user18176310/review/114168419/6dea52321f


2 
 

testimony during the 2015 legislative session; (2) want to be kept “in the loop” on certain subject 
matters; and/or (3) are willing to simply provide their perspective on a particular legislative 
matter. 
 
The “E-lists” are one way TML staff contacts city officials regarding harmful legislation and are 
an invaluable grassroots tool.  In many cases, bills will be set for committee hearings with 
essentially no notice.  When that happens, an email will go out to the appropriate E-list asking 
for information or action on your part. Legislators need to hear from their city officials more than 
from TML staff. 
 
To participate in the E-List project, go to http://www.tml.org/genform/E-List.asp and fill out the 
online form. If you have any questions, please contact JJ Rocha at jj@tml.org or 512-231-7400. 
 
 

Cities Are Partners with State 
 
Texas cities are partners with the state to keep Texas’ economy and quality of life vibrant.  This 
simple one-page (two-sided) document allows city officials to communicate that message to 
legislators. 
 
 

City-Related Bills Filed This Week 
 
Each week, League staff summarizes in this section the city-related bills filed during the 
previous week.  For a cumulative list of all city-related bills filed to date, click here. 
 
 
Property Tax 
 
No property tax bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Sales Tax 
 
S.B. 228 (Creighton) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt firearms and hunting supplies 
from sales and use taxes during the last full weekend in August.  (Companion bill is H.B. 206 by 
Leach.) 
 
S.B. 232 (Schwertner) – Sales Tax: would exempt the sale, use, or consumption of college 
textbooks from sales taxes during two, seventeen-day periods, one beginning in August and one 
beginning in January. 
 
 
Purchasing 
 
No purchasing bills were filed this week. 

http://www.tml.org/genform/E-List.asp
mailto:jj@tml.org?subject=E-List%20project
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/CityRelatedBills12_5_2014.pdf


3 
 

 
 
Elections 
 
H.B. 444 (Johnson) – Voter Registration: would require the secretary of state to implement a 
program to allow a person to complete a voter registration application over the Internet from the 
state’s official website. 
 
H.B. 447 (Johnson) – Elections: would provide that a student identification card issued by a 
public, private, or independent institution of higher education, and that contains the person’s 
photograph, is an acceptable form of photo identification for voting. 
 
H.B. 448 (Alonzo) – Elections: would provide that a person who would be eligible to vote in an 
election, but who is not registered, shall be accepted for voting in the precinct of the person's 
residence if, on the day the person offers to vote, the person submits a voter registration 
application and presents proof of identification that establishes the person’s residence. 
 
S.B. 230 (Watson) – Elections: would provide that the following are acceptable forms of photo 
identification for voting: (1) a student identification card issued by a public institution of higher 
education located in this state that contains the person’s photograph; and (2) an identification 
card issued by a state agency of this state that contains the person’s photograph.  
 
 
Open Government 
 
No open government bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Other Finance and Administration 
 
No finance and administration bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Municipal Courts 
 
No municipal court bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Community and Economic Development 
 
No community and economic development bills were filed this week. 
 
 
 
 
 



4 
 

Personnel 
 
H.B. 434 (S. Thompson) – Construction Workers: would: (1) define a “construction 
employer” to mean an employer who employs an individual to provide services directly related 
to the erection, alteration, repair, renovation, maintenance, or remodeling of a building, structure, 
appurtenance, road, highway, bridge, dam, levee, canal, jetty, or other improvement to or on real 
property, including moving, demolishing, dredging, shoring, scaffolding, drilling, blasting, or 
excavating real property; (2) provide that a construction employer shall properly report the 
employment status of each employee (i.e., employee or independent contractor) for the purposes 
of Texas Workforce Commission reporting; and (3) impose penalties for the failure to properly 
report. 
 
H.B. 445 (Raney) – Military Paid Leave: would require a city, or other governmental entity, to 
give an employee an annual accounting of the state-mandated military paid leave time that the 
employee has used that year. 
 
 
Public Safety 
 

H.B. 455 (Johnson) – Body Cameras: would provide, among other things, that: (1) a law 
enforcement agency in this state shall apply to the Department of Public Safety for a grant to 
equip officers with body cameras if the agency employs officers who: (a) are engaged in traffic 
or highway patrol or otherwise regularly stop or detain motor vehicles; or (b) respond to calls for 
assistance from the public; (2) a law enforcement agency that receives “a grant” from the 
department to provide body cameras to its officers or that otherwise operates a body worn 
camera program shall adopt a policy for the use of body cameras; (3) before a law enforcement 
agency may operate a body camera program, the agency must provide training to: (a) officers 
who will wear the body cameras; and (b) any other personnel who will come into contact with 
video and audio data obtained from the use of body cameras. (Companion bill is S.B. 158 by 
West.) 
 
H.B. 460 (Bell) – Blood Specimen Warrant: would allow a warrant issued to collect a blood 
specimen from a person suspected of committing an intoxication offense to be executed in a 
county that is contiguous to the county in which the warrant was issued.   
 
H.B. 461 (Canales) – Smoking: would create a class C misdemeanor offense for smoking in a 
passenger vehicle when a child who is required to be secured in a child passenger safety seat 
system is in the vehicle. 
 
H.B. 472 (Stephenson) – Asset Forfeiture:  would:  (1) allow law enforcement agencies to use 
criminal asset forfeiture funds for certain audit costs; (2) allow attorneys representing the state to 
use criminal asset forfeiture funds for certain witness-related and audit costs; and (3) require that 
a criminal asset forfeiture audit include a detailed report itemizing all seizures, indicating the 
specific criminal offense on which the seizure was based, and setting out the disposition of any 
charges, if applicable.    
 



5 
 

H.B. 473 (Giddings) – Law Enforcement Vehicles:  would prohibit a city from selling or 
transferring a marked patrol car or other law enforcement motor vehicle to the public unless the 
city first removes equipment or insignia that could mislead a reasonable person to believe the 
vehicle is a law enforcement motor vehicle. (This bill is similar to H.B. 72 by Goldman.) 
 
H.B. 474 (Reynolds) – Body Cameras: would provide, among other things, that: (1) a law 
enforcement agency in this state shall equip with body worn cameras all officers who are 
engaged in traffic or highway patrol or otherwise regularly stop or detain motor vehicles or who 
respond to calls for assistance from the public; (2) a law enforcement agency that is not able to 
equip all officers described in (1) with body worn cameras because it would cause financial 
hardship shall submit to the Texas Department of Public Safety an annual report that: (a) states 
that the agency lacks the money to equip with body worn cameras all officers who are required 
to wear a camera; and (b) includes both the number of cameras in use by the agency and the 
number of cameras required under (1); (3) a law enforcement agency is not required to equip all 
officers described in (1) with body worn cameras until the agency receives the necessary money; 
(4) each officer equipped with a body worn camera shall: (a) activate the camera when 
responding to calls for assistance and when performing other law enforcement activities, 
including traffic stops, pursuits, arrests, searches, or interrogations; and (b) if practicable, before 
engaging with a person who will be recorded, provide the person with verbal notice of the 
recording; (5) a recording created with a body worn camera and documenting an incident that is 
the subject of an investigation or complaint may not be deleted or destroyed before the 
completion of the investigation into the incident or the final disposition of the complaint 
regarding the incident; (6) a recording that is not required to be retained under (5) shall be 
deleted or destroyed as soon as practicable after the 180th day after the date the recording is 
made; and (6) a recording made by a body worn camera is public information. 
 
H.B. 479 (Bell) – Dispatch:  would transfer the regional emergency medical dispatch resource 
center program from the health education center at the University of Texas Medical Branch at 
Galveston to the Commission on State Emergency Communications. 
 
S.B. 199 (Perry) – Synthetic Drugs:  would modify the Texas Controlled Substances Act by 
adding certain chemicals commonly found in bath salts and synthetic marijuana.  
 
S.B. 229 (Creighton) – Firearms:  would, with limited exceptions, provide that a person who is 
an officer or employee of the United States, the state, or a political subdivision commits a class 
A misdemeanor if the person, while acting under color of the person’s office or employment, 
intentionally or knowingly seizes a firearm as required by a federal statute, order, rule, or 
regulation that imposes a prohibition, restriction, or other regulation on firearms that does not 
exist under the laws of this state. 
 
 
Transportation 
 
H.B.  469  (Metcalf)  –  Transportation  Funding:   would  provide  that,  beginning  in 
increments in 2017 and completed in 2026, the revenue derived from the state sales tax 
imposed on the sale of a motor vehicle sold in this state shall be deposited to the credit of the 
state highway fund.  (See H.J.R. 53, below.) 



6 
 

 
H.J.R.  53  (Metcalf)  –  Transportation  Funding:   would  amend the Texas Constitution to 
authorize revenue from the state sales tax imposed on the sale of a motor vehicle to be 
deposited to the credit of the state highway fund.  (See H.B. 469, above.) 
 
 
Utilities and Environment 
 
H.B. 457 (McClendon) – Transportation Funding:  would allocate a certain amount of state 
revenue from the titling of motor vehicles to the Texas emissions reduction plan and the Texas 
rail relocation and improvement fund. 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 



1 
 

 

 
December 19, 2014 

Number 45 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Revenue Cap Bills:  Based on a False Premise 
 
Two companion bills pre-filed for the 2015 legislative session (S.B. 182 by Bettencourt and H.B. 
365 by Elkins) would dramatically cap cities’ maintenance and operations (M&O) property tax 
rate increases at four percent, absent a mandatory election.  Future editions of the Legislative 

Update will highlight the numerous ill effects and unintended consequences of such a revenue 
cap.  This article simply asks the following:  Is a four percent revenue cap warranted in light of 
cities’ recent taxing behavior?   
 
Mr. Bettencourt, the author of the Senate bill, claims tax bills are routinely soaring by nearly 10 
percent per year.  When it comes to school district property taxes (nearly 60 percent of a typical 
tax bill) he may be right.  School district property tax rates are essentially “maxed-out” in many 
areas at roughly $1.04 per $100 of value.  As a result, if appraisals go up 10 percent, school taxes 
will most likely go up 10 percent as well. 
 
But city taxes don’t function anything like school taxes.  Cities must follow procedures designed 
to force rates down when appraisals rise dramatically.  The tenor of Mr. Bettencourt’s remarks 
suggests that isn’t happening.  And his revenue cap bill, which targets cities and counties but not 
schools, certainly suggests that cities are part of the problem he cites.  So…are they? 
 
It’s possible that an individual homeowner’s tax bill can go up by a large amount due to an 
appraisal increase unique to that homeowner or a specific neighborhood. However, in order for 
M&O tax bills across an entire city to go up 10 percent or more, the city must have adopted an 
M&O tax rate that exceeded the rollback rate (an eight percent increase) by at least an additional 



2 
 

two percent.  That’s not happening according to data obtained by the League from the Texas 
comptroller regarding 2013 city property tax rates (the most recent available). 
 
Of the 1,002 cities fully reporting in 2013, the average adopted city M&O tax rate was $.4149. 
The average effective M&O tax rate for those 1,002 cities was $.4241.  That’s not a typo.  In 
other words, the average adopted rate statewide was lower than the rate necessary to raise 
the same amount of taxes on the same properties as the year before. In one sense, average 
taxes went down on same-location homeowners on a state-wide basis. (Remember that the 
effective M&O rate forces an adjustment for increasing property values—an adopted rate below 
that means M&O taxes actually went down for many city residents.)   
 
Numerically, though, a majority of cities adopted an M&O tax rate higher than the effective rate:  
628 out of 1002, or 63 percent.  Of those, only 61 cities went up more than eight percent, 
meaning just six percent exceeded the current rollback cap.  A plurality of cities that exceeded 
the effective M&O rate (295) went up less than four percent. 
 
Total Cities 1002 
Average Adopted M&O Rate 0.4149 
Average Effective M&O Rate 0.4241 
Adopted M&O Rate less than Effective M&O Rate 369 
Adopted M&O Rate Equal to Effective M&O Rate 5 
Adopted M&O Rate Over by 0-4% 295 
Adopted M&O Rate Over by 4-8% 272 
Adopted M&O Rate Over by more than 8% 61 
 
 
The “average” Texas city in 2013 adopted a rate that was nowhere close to the eight percent 
rollback cap under current law.  Many cities charged homeowners less than they did the previous 
year.  Thus, the answer to the original question is that city tax bills aren’t increasing anywhere 
near the 10 percent claimed by Mr. Bettencourt. 
 
If that’s the case, why the big push to lower the city rollback rate from eight to four percent?  
The state comptroller’s data show cities as a whole are generally well below the eight percent 
cap.  Thus, there is clearly no city property tax problem that needs fixing at the state government 
level.  
 
School taxes, a responsibility of the state, are a different story altogether.  Many school officials 
will tell you the reason school property taxes continue to rise is that the state’s share of education 
funding has been shrinking.  Perhaps legislators are trying to blame cities and counties for higher 
property taxes because they don’t want to deal with the real problem:  School district taxes. And 
they don’t want to face the real solution:  Increasing the state’s share of education funding. 
 
 



3 
 

The Public Utility Commission:   
Texas Two-Step for Utility Rate Case Participation? 

 
As reported in previous editions of the Legislative Update, the Texas Railroad Commission 
(RRC) took action last week to drastically limit city participation in gas rate cases.  It appears 
that the Texas Public Utility Commission (PUC) may soon follow suit for electric rate cases. 
 
Similar to the RRC rules, the proposed PUC rules would limit how the discovery process works 
in electric rate cases.  Some in the industry argue that the city intervention process is 
“inefficient,” and that the PUC should “streamline” the process.   
 
City intervention almost always protects consumers by lowering the rate increases sought by 
electric utilities. Limiting how cities can participate would more efficiently allow electric utilities 
to raise their rates.  That certainly streamlines the way…for higher electric bills for Texans.   
 
Even the Texas attorney general, on behalf of all state agencies and public universities in Texas, 
is opposed to the proposed rules.  The Texas Municipal League will join him, the City of 
Houston, the Alliance of Local Regulatory Authorities, the Steering Committee of Cities Served 
by Oncor, and a number of consumer groups in submitting comments in opposition to the 
proposed rules.   
 
Interested cities can file comments until December 22, 2014.  In addition, a hearing on the 
proposed rules will be held on January 20, 2015, at 10:00 a.m. in the William B. Travis building 
in Austin.   
 
 

TML E-List Project:  Choose Your Area of Interest 
 
The Texas Municipal League is once again implementing the TML E-List project by gathering 
email addresses from city officials (elected and appointed) who: (1) may be willing to provide 
testimony during the 2015 legislative session; (2) want to be kept “in the loop” on certain subject 
matters; and/or (3) are willing to simply provide their perspective on a particular legislative 
matter. 
 
The “E-lists” are one way TML staff contacts city officials regarding harmful legislation and are 
an invaluable grassroots tool.  In many cases, bills will be set for committee hearings with 
essentially no notice.  When that happens, an email will go out to the appropriate E-list asking 
for information or action on your part. Legislators need to hear from their city officials more than 
from TML staff. 
 
To participate in the E-List project, go to http://www.tml.org/genform/E-List.asp and fill out the 
online form. If you have any questions, please contact JJ Rocha at jj@tml.org or 512-231-7400. 
 
 

http://www.sos.state.tx.us/texreg/archive/November72014/Proposed%20Rules/16.ECONOMIC%20REGULATION.html#21
http://www.tml.org/genform/E-List.asp
mailto:jj@tml.org?subject=E-List%20project


4 
 

Cities Are Partners with State 
 
Texas cities are partners with the state to keep Texas’ economy and quality of life vibrant.  This 
simple one-page (two-sided) document allows city officials to communicate that message to 
legislators. 
 
 

City-Related Bills Filed This Week 
 
Each week, League staff summarizes in this section the city-related bills filed during the 
previous week.  For a cumulative list of all city-related bills filed to date, click here. 
 
Property Tax 
 
H.B. 490 (E. Rodriguez) – Property Tax Exemption: would authorize a city that adopts or has 
adopted a local option residence homestead property tax exemption to establish a dollar-amount 
ceiling on the application of such exemption. (See H.J.R. 57, below.) 
 
H.J.R. 57 (E. Rodriguez) – Property Tax Exemption: would amend the Texas Constitution to 
authorize a city that adopts or has adopted a local option residence homestead property tax 
exemption to take official action before July 1st to establish a dollar-amount ceiling on the 
application of such exemption.. (See H.B. 490, above.) 
 
 
Sales Tax 
 
H.B. 491 (Hernandez Luna) – Sales Tax Exemption: would exempt the sale, use, or 
consumption of college textbooks from sales taxes during two seventeen-day periods, one 
beginning in August and one beginning in January. (Companion bill is S.B. 232 by Schwertner.) 
 
S.B. 248 (Estes) – Sales Tax: would repeal the state law prohibiting the state comptroller from 
crediting to the Parks and Wildlife Department or the Texas Historical Commission any amount 
of taxes imposed on the sale of sporting goods in excess of the amounts appropriated to the 
department or commission, respectively. (See S.J.R. 18, below.) 
 
S.J.R. 18 (Estes) – Sales Tax: would amend the Texas Constitution to provide that, for each 
state fiscal year, the net revenue received from the collection of any state taxes imposed on the 
sale, storage, or use of sporting goods is automatically appropriated when received to the Parks 
and Wildlife Department and the Texas Historical Commission, or their successors in function, 
and is allocated between those agencies as provided by general law. (See S.B. 248, above.) 
 
 
Purchasing 
 
No purchasing bills were filed this week. 
 

http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/CityRelatedBills12_19_2014.pdf


5 
 

 
Elections 
 
H.B. 484 (Capriglione) – Elections: would provide, among other things, that in order for an 
individual to be an eligible candidate for city office and qualify for the office, the individual 
must be a registered voter in the territory from which the office is elected for six months 
preceding the regular filing deadline for a candidate’s application for a place on the ballot.  
 
 
Open Government 
 
No open government bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Other Finance and Administration 
 
H.B. 486 (Howard) – Financial Statements:  would require the city secretary in a city with a 
population of 100,000 or more to remove the home address of an individual from a financial 
statement before posting the statement on the city’s website. 
 
H.J.R. 55 (Villalba) – Freedom of Religion:  would amend the Texas constitution to provide 
that government may not “burden in any way” a person’s free exercise of religion, unless the 
burden is: (1) necessary to further a compelling governmental interest; and (2) the least 
restrictive means of furthering that interest.   
 
 
Municipal Courts 
 
No municipal court bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Community and Economic Development 
 
No community and economic development bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Personnel 
 
H.B. 509 (Raney) – School Speed limits:  would: (1) require a city to consider the appropriate 
speed limit near a school, including an open-enrollment charter school, on request; (2) require a 
city to grant the request for a speed limit requested by a school or to provide written findings for 
rejecting the speed limit; (3) allow a school to appeal any rejection of a requested speed limit to a 
district court; and (4) empower a district court to set a speed limit based on an appeal brought by 
the school.  
 



6 
 

H.B. 512 (Moody) – Workers’ Compensation: would: (1) waive governmental immunity for 
claims against a public employer, including a city, that discriminates or retaliates against a first 
responder who has filed a workers compensation claim; and (2) cap damages at $100,000 for 
each person’s claim.   
 
 
Public Safety 
 

H.B. 488 (Guillen) – Synthetic Drugs:  would designate certain synthetic compounds to Penalty 
Group 2 or 2-A of the Texas Controlled Substances Act.  (Companion bill is S.B. 199 by Perry.) 
 
H.B. 507 (Moody) – Marijuana: would make possession of less than one ounce of marijuana a 
civil offense; and would also make the identity of a person cited or found liable for a civil 
marijuana penalty confidential under the Public Information Act.  
 
H.B. 530 (Hernandez Luna) – Asset Forfeiture:  would: (1) allow a law enforcement agency to 
transfer not more than ten percent of the gross amount credited to the agency’s criminal asset 
forfeiture fund to a separate special fund to provide scholarships to the children of certain peace 
officers who are killed in the line of duty; and (2) require the attorney general to develop an 
annual report detailing the amount of funds forfeited, or credited after the sale of forfeited 
property, and post the same on the attorney general’s website.  
 

H.J.R. 56 (J. White) – Gun Rights:  would amend the Texas constitution to provide that the 
legislature may not regulate the wearing of arms in any way, even if the regulation is designed to 
prevent crime. 
 
 
Transportation 
 
H.B. 529 (Larson) – Texas Transportation Commission:  would provide that the Texas 
Transportation Commission shall consist of three members who are elected statewide.  
(Currently, the commission consists of five members are appointed by the governor and 
approved by the Senate.) 
 
 
Utilities and Environment 
 
H.B. 497 (Wu) – Saltwater Pipelines:  would add to the definition of a “saltwater pipeline 
facility” in current law a pipeline that contains salt and other substances and is intended to be 
used in drilling or operating a well used in the exploration for or production of oil or gas, 
including an injection well used for enhanced recovery operations.  The result of the expanded 
definition would be to grant such pipeline operators the right to run their pipelines on or across 
city rights-of-way, subject to certain city restrictions and payment of right-of-way rental fees.    
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 

person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 

League. 



1 
 

 

 
January 2, 2015 

Number 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Texas Economic Development Handbook Updated 
 
The Texas Municipal League has assumed editing and publication of the Economic Development 

Handbook.  The publication, originally prepared by the Texas attorney general’s office, had 
become out-of-date.  League staff, as well as several recognized legal experts, have updated the 
handbook and posted it online.  It will be updated following each session of the Texas 
Legislature. 
 
 

 Texas Board of Professional Engineers 
 
League staff met recently with the executive director of the Texas Board of Professional 
Engineers (TBPE).  The TBPE has asked the League to share some basic information about what 
it does and how that relates to cities: 
 

The TBPE regulates the practice of professional engineering in Texas, and it has 
reached out to the League and its membership with the intent of working together to 
educate and answer questions that city officials may have regarding professional 
engineering.   

 
The TBPE has informative materials, including a flowchart titled “When is a 
professional engineer required on a project?”  The materials are available at 
http://engineers.texas.gov/media.html.   
 

http://www.tml.org/p/EconomicDevelopmentHandbook2015_TML.pdf
http://engineers.texas.gov/media.html


2 
 

TBPE staff is available to make outreach presentations directly to a city or TML region, 
either in person or via webinar, to discuss the role of TBPE, explain how it affects 
cities, and answer any questions you might have.   
 
Please contact the executive director, Lance Kinney, P.E., at 
lance.kinney@engineers.texas.gov or 512-440-3080 with questions. 

  
 

TML E-List Project:  Choose Your Area of Interest 
 
The Texas Municipal League is once again implementing the TML E-List project by gathering 
email addresses from city officials (elected and appointed) who: (1) may be willing to provide 
testimony during the 2015 legislative session; (2) want to be kept “in the loop” on certain subject 
matters; and/or (3) are willing to simply provide their perspective on a particular legislative 
matter. 
 
The “E-lists” are one way TML staff contacts city officials regarding harmful legislation and are 
an invaluable grassroots tool.  In many cases, bills will be set for committee hearings with 
essentially no notice.  When that happens, an email will go out to the appropriate E-list asking 
for information or action on your part. Legislators need to hear from their city officials more than 
from TML staff. 
 
To participate in the E-List project, go to http://www.tml.org/genform/E-List.asp and fill out the 
online form. If you have any questions, please contact JJ Rocha at jj@tml.org or 512-231-7400. 
 
 

Cities Are Partners with State 
 
Texas cities are partners with the state to keep Texas’ economy and quality of life vibrant.  This 
simple one-page (two-sided) document allows city officials to communicate that message to 
legislators. 
 
 

City-Related Bills Filed This Week 
 
Each week, League staff summarizes in this section the city-related bills filed during the 
previous week.  For a cumulative list of all city-related bills filed to date, click here. 
 
Property Tax 
 
No property tax bills were filed this week. 
 
Sales Tax 
 
No sales tax bills were filed this week. 

mailto:lance.kinney@engineers.texas.gov
http://www.tml.org/genform/E-List.asp
mailto:jj@tml.org?subject=E-List%20project
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/TXCitiesWorkOnePager.pdf
http://www.tml.org/p/CityRelatedBills1_2_2015.pdf


3 
 

 
 
Purchasing 
 
No purchasing bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Elections 
 
H.B. 534 (Nevarez) – Elections: would provide that an identification card issued by an agency 
or institution of the federal or state government and that contains a person’s photograph is an 
acceptable form of photo identification for voting.  
 
H.B. 535 (Nevarez) – Elections: would provide that a valid identification card that contains the 
person’s photograph issued by a tribal organization is an acceptable form of photo identification 
for voting.  
 
H.B. 536 (Nevarez) – Elections: would provide that, for a person who is 65 years of age or 
older, any legal form of identification for voting is acceptable, even if it has expired.  
 
S.B. 251 (Ellis) – Elections: would: (1) authorize an entity that orders an election to appoint a 
person to serve as an interpreter during the election if the person is a registered voter of the 
county in which the voter needing the interpreter resides or a registered voter of an adjacent 
county; and (2) provide that a voter may select any person other than the voter’s employer, an 
agent of the voter’s employer, or an officer or agent of a labor union to which the voter belongs, 
to serve as the voter’s own personal interpreter.  
 
 
Open Government 
 
No open government bills were filed this week. 
 
 
Other Finance and Administration 
 
H.B. 540 (P. King) – Initiative and Referendum: this bill would apply only to a home rule city 
that has initiative and referendum provisions in the city charter.  The bill would provide that: (1) 
before ordering an election as required by charter, the city shall submit a measure proposed by 
petition to enact a new ordinance or repeal an existing ordinance to the attorney general; (2) the 
attorney general shall, not later than the 90th day after submission: (a) determine whether any 
portion of the proposed measure would violate the Texas or federal constitution, a state statute, 
or a rule adopted as authorized by state statute; (b) determine whether passage of the measure 
would cause a governmental taking of private property for which the Texas or federal 
constitution would require compensation to be paid to the property owner; and (c) advise the city 
of its determinations; (3) the city may not hold an election on the proposed measure if the 
attorney general has determined that any portion of the proposed measure would violate the 



4 
 

Texas or federal constitution or a state statute or rule or would cause a governmental taking of 
private property; and (4) to the extent that the requirements of the bill conflict with a charter 
provision requiring the city to order an election within a period following receipt of a petition, 
the bill controls and the period during which the city must order the election is extended to the 
extent necessary to comply with the bill. 
 
 
Municipal Courts 
 
H.B. 538 (Spitzer) – Jurisdiction: would: (1) provide that a municipal court has jurisdiction 
over a fine-only offense committed on the entire width of a segment of highway or street 
abutting property located in a city; and (2) expand a peace officer’s jurisdiction in accordance 
with the court’s jurisdiction described in (1), above. 
 
H.B. 559 (Anchia) – Magistrates: would require a magistrate to inform an arrestee that, if the 
person is not a citizen of the United States, a plea of guilty or no contest for the offense charged 
may affect the person’s immigration or residency status and may result in deportation. 
(Companion bill is S.B. 268 by Watson.) 
 
 
Community and Economic Development 
 
H.B. 539 (P. King) – Regulation of Oil or Natural Gas:  would provide that a city with 
authority to adopt an oil or gas measure may not adopt one unless the city complies with the 
numerous and complex requirements of the bill, including submitting various information to the 
state related to the alleged costs of the measure to the state and remitting payment to the state for 
its alleged losses as determined by a state agency.   

 
H.B. 555 (Springer) – Annexation:  would provide that a city may not annex an area if the 
width of the area at the widest point exceeds the length of the area at the longest point, unless the 
boundaries of the city are contiguous to the area on at least two sides or the area abuts or is 
contiguous to another jurisdictional boundary. 
 
S.B. 267 (Perry) – Rental Housing:  would provide that neither a city nor a county may not 
adopt or enforce an ordinance or regulation that prohibits an owner, lessee, sublessee, assignee, 
managing agent, or other person having the right to lease, sublease, or rent a housing 
accommodation from refusing to lease or rent the housing accommodation to a person because of 
the person’s lawful source of income to pay rent, including a federal housing choice voucher. 
 
 
Personnel 
 
H.B. 532 (McClendon) – Employee Leave: would: (1) require an employer, including a city, 
with 25 or more employees to allow an employee who is a parent or guardian to take a limited 
amount of unpaid time off to meet with his child’s school or attend his child’s school activities 



5 
 

subject to reporting and other requirements; and (2) create a cause of action for disciplining an 
employee for using such leave.  
 
H.B. 548 (Johnson) – Employee Background Checks:  would prohibit a public employer, 
including a city, from asking about an employment applicant’s criminal history record 
information unless: (1) the applicant has been offered a conditional offer of employment or an 
interview; (2) the applicant would be working with children; or (3) a criminal history information 
check is required by other law.   
 
 
Public Safety 
 
H.B. 533 (Ashby) – Vehicle Impoundment:   would: (1) authorize a peace officer to 
impound or authorize a vehicle storage facility to remove and impound a vehicle of a person 
who: (a) is involved in a motor vehicle accident or is stopped for an alleged violation of a local 
traffic ordinance, state traffic law, or any other law applicable to the operation of a vehicle on a 
roadway; and (b) operates a motor vehicle without establishing financial responsibility for the 
vehicle; (2) require a peace officer who impounds or authorizes the impoundment of a vehicle 
under (1), above, to instruct the operator of the vehicle as to how the owner of the vehicle may 
recover the motor vehicle; (3) allow a law enforcement agency or vehicle storage facility to 
release a vehicle impounded under (1), above, only if the owner provides: (a) sufficient evidence 
showing the motor vehicle was exempt from the financial responsibility requirement; or (b) 
sufficient evidence showing that on the applicable date the vehicle was in compliance; or 
(c)sufficient evidence showing financial responsibility for the vehicle has been obtained and 
is valid; and (d) provides a driver’s license issued to the owner of the vehicle and pays all 
associated fees; and (4) authorize the law enforcement agency or vehicle storage facility that 
impounds a vehicle under (1), above, to release the vehicle to a person who is shown as a 
lienholder on the vehicle’s certificate of title only if the person provides a statement from an 
officer of the lienholder establishing that the obligation secured by the vehicle is in default and 
the person pays all associated fees. 
 

H.B. 541 (Canales) – Custodial Interrogations:  would:  (1) limit the law enforcement agencies 
that are qualified to conduct a custodial interrogation of an individual suspected of committing 
murder, capital murder, kidnapping, aggravated kidnapping, trafficking of persons, continuous 
trafficking of persons, continuous sexual abuse of young children, indecency with a child, 
improper relationship between educator and student, sexual assault, aggravated sexual assault or 
sexual performance by a child; (2) require a law enforcement agency qualified to conduct a 
custodial interrogation described in (1), above, to make an electronic recording of the 
interrogation when it occurs in a place of detention, including a city police station or department; 
(3) provide that an electronic recording described in (2), above, is only complete if the recording 
begins at the time the person being interrogated receives a Miranda warning and continues until 
the interrogation ceases; (4) exempt a recording described in (2), above, from public disclosure; 
and (5) excuse a law enforcement agency from making the electronic recording described in (2), 
above, if:  (a) the accused refuses to respond to questioning or cooperate in the interrogation; (b) 
a statement was not made exclusively as a result of a custodial interrogation; (c) the recording 
equipment malfunctions; (d) exigent public safety concerns prevent or render infeasible the 



6 
 

making of the recording; or (e) the peace officer reasonably believes that the accused was not 
taken into custody for or being interrogated concerning the commission of an offense listed in 
(1), above.  
 
H.B. 543 (Dutton) – DWI: would allow the commissioners court of a county or the governing 
body of a city to create a “Direct Intervention using Voluntary Education, Restitution, and 
Treatment (DIVERT)” program for certain first-time DWI offenders.   
 

H.B. 554 (Springer) – Concealed Handguns:  would provide a defense to prosecution for a 
concealed handgun licensee who accidentally carries a concealed handgun into the secure area of 
an airport.  (Companion bill is H.B. 571 by Pickett.) 
 
H.B. 563 (Dutton) – Law Enforcement: would: (1) expand the definition of the crime of 
official oppression to include excessive force; and (2) make excessive force by a peace officer a 
third degree felony. 
 
H.B. 571 (Pickett) – Concealed Handguns:  this bill is identical to H.B. 554, above.   
 
H.B. 573 (J. White) – Concealed Handguns:  would allow an election judge or clerk who 
possesses a concealed handgun license to carry a concealed handgun on the premises of a polling 
place. 
 
H.J.R. 61 (Ashby) – Hunting:  would amend the Texas Constitution to provide that the people 
have the right to hunt, fish, and harvest wildlife, including by the use of traditional methods, 
subject to laws or regulations to conserve and manage wildlife and preserve the future of hunting 
and fishing.  (Note:  this bill would likely eliminate a city’s ability to regulate the discharge of 
firearms.) 
 
S.B. 257 (Ellis) – Firearms:  would provide that: (1) a law enforcement agency that receives a 
report of a lost or stolen firearm shall provide a copy of the report to the Department of Public 
Safety; (2) the department shall analyze information received under the bill and shall make the 
analysis available to any local law enforcement agency, political subdivision, or state agency to 
the extent the analysis is reasonably necessary or useful to the agency or subdivision in carrying 
out duties imposed by law on the agency or subdivision; and (3) a person commits an offense if 
he or she fails to report the loss or theft of a firearm to law enforcement. 
 
S.B. 259 (Ellis) – Firearms:  would require a criminal background check for essentially any 
transfer of a firearm.   
 
 
Transportation 
 
No transportation bills were filed this week. 
 
 
 



7 
 

Utilities and Environment 
 
S.B. 253 (Ellis) – Environmental Justice Communities: would: (1) require a person applying 
for a permit for a new facility that requires approval from Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) or the expansion of such a facility to submit to the TCEQ a report stating 
whether the facility is to be located in an environmental justice community; (2) require a facility 
in an environmental justice community to consult with the mayor in the city in which the facility 
is to be located; (3) require a permit applicant to publish notice of and hold a public hearing to 
provide information on the potential environmental impacts of the facility; and (4) allow a city 
and an owner or developer of an affecting facility to enter into a community environmental 
benefit agreement.    
 
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any purpose. No other 
person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, or distribute any part of this 

document without the written authorization of the Texas Municipal 
League. 



COUNCIL MEETING 

1-08-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-749 

AMENDING THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-749 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CITY OF HUMBLE ORDINANCE 14-742, 

PASSED AND APPROVED THE 25
TH

 DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2014 AND BEING 

AN ORIDNANCE ADOPTING THE CITY OF HUMBLE BUDGET FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2014-2015, BY ADDING TO THE BUDGET ADOPTED HEREBY AN 

ADDENDUM NO. 1; PROVIDING FOR A CERTAIN AMENDMENT TO SUCH 

BUDGET; MAKING CERTAIN FINDINGS; AND PROVIDING OTHER 

MATTERS RELATED TO THE SUBJECT.  

 

WHEREAS, following proper notice and public hearing, the City Council adopted the City of Humble 

Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 on September 25, 2014; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to remain competitive with salaries for the position of City Manager offered by 

benchmark cities in the greater Houston Area, it has been determined that an increase in 

the City Manager’s salary and an amendment to said budget is necessary; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas hereby find and determines that public 

necessities require the adoption of such amendment; now therefore, 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, THAT: 

 

Section 1.  The facts and matters set forth in the preamble of this Ordinance are found to be true and 

correct. 

 

Section 2. City of Humble  Ordinance No. 14-742 passed and approved the 25
th
 day of September, 

2014 is hereby amended by adding to the City of Humble Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-

2015 adopted thereby, Addendum No. 1, a copy of which is attached hereto and made a 

part hereof for all purposes. 

 

Section 3. That the City Secretary be authorized and directed to cause a true and correct copy of 

Addendum No. 1 to be attached to the City of Humble Budget for Fiscal Year 2014-2015 

on file in the Office of the City Secretary. 

 

Section 4. That this ordinance shall be effective immediately, upon passage.  

 

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 8th day of January 2015. 

        

 

 

              

       Donald G. McMannes  

       Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

       

Jason Stuebe 

City Secretary 



 

 

 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
ADDENDUM TO THE CITY OF HUMBLE BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 

2014-2015 
 
 
 
 

GENERAL FUND 
 
Administration Department 
Salary – City Manager (01-01-00-6000)  $  12,000.00  
        

 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND    $  12,000.00  




